Synacor, Inc. Form DEFC14A March 27, 2015 Table of Contents

SCHEDULE 14A INFORMATION

Proxy Statement Pursuant to Section 14(a) of the

Securities Exchange Act of 1934

Filed by the Registrant b

Filed by a Party other than the Registrant "

Check the appropriate box:

- " Preliminary Proxy Statement
- " Confidential, for Use of the Commission Only (as permitted by Rule 14a-6(e)(2))
- b Definitive Proxy Statement
- " Definitive Additional Materials
- " Soliciting Material Pursuant to § 240.14a-12

SYNACOR, INC.

(Name of Registrant as Specified in its Charter)

(Name of Person(s) Filing Proxy Statement if Other Than the Registrant)

Payment of Filing Fee (Check the appropriate box)

- b No fee required.
- " Fee computed on table below per Exchange Act Rules 14a-6(i)(1) and 0-11.
 - (1) Title of each class of securities to which transaction applies:
 - (2) Aggregate number of securities to which transaction applies:

Edgar Filing: Synacor, Inc. - Form DEFC14A

- (3) Per unit price or other underlying value of transaction computed pursuant to Exchange Act Rule 0-11 (Set forth the amount on which the filing fee is calculated and state how it was determined):
- (4) Proposed maximum aggregate value of transaction:
- (5) Total fee paid:

...

- Fee paid previously with preliminary materials.
- " Check box if any part of the fee is offset as provided by Exchange Act Rule 0-11(a)(2) and identify the filing for which the offsetting fee was paid previously. Identify the previous filing by registration statement number, or the Form or Schedule and the date of its filing.

(1) Amount Previously Paid:

- (2) Form, Schedule or Registration Statement No.:
- (3) Filing Party:
- (4) Date Filed:

Edgar Filing: Synacor, Inc. - Form DEFC14A

SYNACOR, INC.

40 La Riviere Drive, Suite 300

Buffalo, NY 14202

March 30, 2015

Dear Stockholder:

I am pleased to invite you to attend Synacor, Inc. s 2015 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, to be held on April 20, 2015 at The Embassy Suites Hotel, 200 Delaware Avenue, Buffalo, New York 14202. The meeting will begin promptly at 9:00 a.m., local time. If you wish to attend the meeting to vote in person and need directions, please contact Synacor Investor Relations at (716) 362-3309 or <u>ir@synacor.com</u>.

Enclosed are the following:

our Notice of Annual Meeting of Stockholders and Proxy Statement for 2015;

our Annual Report on Form 10-K for fiscal year 2014; and

a <u>WHITE</u> proxy card with a return envelope to record your vote.

Details regarding the business to be conducted at the Annual Meeting are more fully described in the accompanying Notice of Annual Meeting of Stockholders and Proxy Statement. We encourage you to read these materials, as well as our Annual Report on Form 10-K for fiscal year 2014, carefully.

Your vote is important. Whether or not you expect to attend, please complete, date, sign, and return your <u>WHITE</u> proxy card in the enclosed envelope, or vote via telephone or the Internet according to the instructions in the Proxy Statement, as soon as possible to ensure that your shares will be represented and voted at the Annual Meeting. If you attend the Annual Meeting, you may vote your shares in person even though you have previously voted by proxy if you follow the instructions in the Proxy Statement.

On behalf of the Board of Directors, thank you for your continued support and interest.

Sincerely,

/s/ Jordan Levy Jordan Levy

Chairman of the Board

40 La Riviere Drive, Suite 300

Buffalo, NY 14202

T 716.853.1362 F 716.332.0081

http://www.synacor.com

YOUR VOTE IS EXTREMELY IMPORTANT

Please vote by telephone or Internet, or complete, date and sign the enclosed <u>WHITE</u> proxy card and return it at your earliest convenience in the enclosed postage-prepaid return envelope so that your shares may be voted.

SYNACOR, INC.

40 La Riviere Drive, Suite 300

Buffalo, NY 14202

NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS

To Be Held On April 20, 2015

Dear Stockholder:

You are cordially invited to attend the 2015 Annual Meeting of Stockholders of Synacor, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the Company). The meeting will be held on April 20, 2015 at 9:00 a.m. local time at The Embassy Suites Hotel, 200 Delaware Avenue, Buffalo, New York 14202 for the following purposes:

1. To elect the three (3) members of the Board of Directors identified in the accompanying proxy statement to serve until the 2018 annual meeting of stockholders of the Company or until such persons successors have been duly elected and qualified.

2. To ratify the appointment by the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors of Deloitte & Touche LLP as the independent registered public accounting firm of the Company for its fiscal year ending December 31, 2015.

3. To ratify the Rights Agreement, dated as of July 14, 2014, between the Company and American Stock Transfer & Trust Company, LLC as rights agent.

4. To transact any other business properly brought before the meeting or any adjournment thereof.

These items of business are more fully described in the Proxy Statement accompanying this Notice.

The record date for the 2015 Annual Meeting is March 23, 2015. Only stockholders of record at the close of business on that date may vote at the meeting or any adjournment thereof.

The Company intends to commence mailing to all stockholders of record entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting a full set paper copy of the attached proxy statement together with our Annual Report on Form 10-K on or about March 30, 2015. Additionally, the Company intends to post our Annual Report on Form 10-K, the attached proxy statement and accompanying <u>WHITE</u> proxy card on the Internet at <u>http://investor.synacor.com</u> and <u>https://materials.proxyvote.com/871561</u> on or about March 30, 2015.

In selecting the director nominees that we are proposing for election in the attached proxy statement, our Board of Directors has focused on selecting a diverse group of experienced board candidates with strong credentials and relevant industry expertise who will work together constructively to execute our strategic plan for delivering long-term growth and stockholder value. Our Board of Directors is pleased to nominate for election as directors the three persons named in Proposal 1 in the attached proxy statement and on the enclosed <u>WHITE</u> proxy card.

Whether or not you plan to attend the 2015 Annual Meeting, please complete and sign the enclosed <u>WHITE</u> proxy card and return it in the enclosed addressed envelope (which is postage prepaid if mailed in the United States). Your promptness in returning the <u>WHITE</u> proxy card will assist in the expeditious and orderly processing of the proxy and will assure that you are represented at the annual meeting even if you cannot attend the meeting in person. You may also vote by telephone or Internet by following the instructions on the <u>WHITE</u> proxy card. If you return your <u>WHITE</u> proxy card or vote by telephone or Internet, you may nevertheless attend the annual meeting and vote your shares in person. Stockholders whose shares are held in the name of a broker or other nominee and who desire to vote in person at the 2015 Annual Meeting should bring with them a legal proxy.

By Order of the Board of Directors

/s/ William J. Stuart William J. Stuart

Chief Financial Officer and Corporate Secretary

Buffalo, New York

March 30, 2015

IMPORTANT NOTICE REGARDING THE AVAILABILITY OF PROXY MATERIALS FOR THE

STOCKHOLDER MEETING TO BE HELD ON APRIL 20, 2015.

The Proxy Statement and Annual Report on Form 10-K are available at https://materials.proxyvote.com/871561.

If you have any questions, require assistance with voting your <u>WHITE</u> proxy card,

or need additional copies of the proxy materials, please contact:

The Proxy Advisory Group, LLC

888-55-PROXY

(888-557-7699)

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	Page
QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS ABOUT THIS PROXY MATERIAL AND VOTING	1
Why am I receiving these materials?	1
Who can vote at the Annual Meeting?	1
What am I voting on?	2
How do I vote?	2
How many votes do I have?	2
What if I return a proxy card but do not make specific choices?	3
Who are the participants in, and who is paying for, this proxy solicitation?	3
What does it mean if I receive more than one set of proxy materials?	3
Can I change my vote after submitting my proxy?	3
How are votes counted?	4
What is a broker non-vote ?	4
How many votes are needed to approve each proposal?	4
What are the Board s voting recommendations?	4
What is the quorum requirement?	5
How can I find out the results of the voting at the Annual Meeting?	5
How can stockholders submit a proposal for inclusion in our Proxy Statement for the 2016 Annual Meeting of Stockholders?	5
How can stockholders submit a proposal to metasion in our rioxy statement for the 2010 Annual Meeting of Stockholders that will not be included in our	5
Proxy Statement for the 2016 Annual Meeting of Stockholders?	5
	5
What if the date of the 2016 Annual Meeting of Stockholders changes by more than 30 days from the anniversary of this year s	5
Annual Meeting?	5
Does a stockholder proposal require specific information?	6
PROPOSAL 1 ELECTION OF DIRECTORS	7
Information Regarding the Nominees	7
Information Regarding Other Directors Continuing in Office	8
Information Regarding Opposing Slate of Directors	9
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE	11
Independence of the Board of Directors	11
Board Leadership Structure	11
Risk Oversight Management	11
Information Regarding the Board of Directors and its Committees	12
<u>Audit Committee</u>	12
Compensation Committee	13
Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation	13
Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee	14
Meetings of the Board of Directors	15
Code of Business Conduct	15
Stockholder Communications with the Board of Directors	15
Compensation of Directors	15
PROPOSAL 2 RATIFICATION OF APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM	17
Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm s Fees	17
Pre-Approval Policies and Procedures	18
Audit Committee Report	18
PROPOSED 3 RATIFICATION OF THE RIGHTS AGREEMENT	20
Background	20
Description of the Rights Plan	21

i

	Page
EXECUTIVE OFFICERS	23
SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT	24
SECTION 16(a) BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP REPORTING COMPLIANCE	27
SUMMARY OF NAMED EXECUTIVE OFFICER COMPENSATION	27
Compensation Committee Report	27
Summary Compensation Table	28
Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End	30
Employment Agreements and Potential Payments upon Termination or Change of Control	32
Perquisites and Other Benefits	35
Securities Authorized For Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans	35
TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PERSONS	36
Indemnification Agreements	36
Review, Approval or Ratification of Transactions with Related Persons	36
DELIVERY OF DOCUMENTS TO STOCKHOLDERS SHARING AN ADDRESS	37
OTHER MATTERS	37
<u>APPENDIX A RIGHTS AGREEMEN</u> T	
APPENDIX B ADDITIONAL INFORMATION REGARDING PARTICIPANTS IN THE SOLICITATION	

ii

SYNACOR, INC.

40 La Riviere Drive, Suite 300

Buffalo, NY 14202

PROXY STATEMENT

FOR THE 2015 ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS

To Be Held On April 20, 2015 at 9:00 a.m., local time

QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS ABOUT THIS PROXY MATERIAL AND VOTING

Why am I receiving these materials?

We sent you these proxy materials because the Board of Directors (the Board of Directors or the Board) of Synacor, Inc. (sometimes referred to as we, the Company or Synacor) is soliciting your proxy to vote at the 2015 Annual Meeting of Stockholders (the Annual Meeting). You are invited to attend the Annual Meeting to vote on the proposals described in this Proxy Statement. However, you do not need to attend the meeting to vote your shares. Instead, you may simply complete, date, sign and return the enclosed <u>WHITE</u> proxy card or follow the instructions below to submit your proxy by telephone or on the Internet.

The Company intends to commence mailing to all stockholders of record entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting a full set paper copy of this Proxy Statement together with our Annual Report on Form 10-K on or about March 30, 2015. Additionally, the Company intends to post our Annual Report on Form 10-K, this Proxy Statement and accompanying proxy card on the Internet at <u>http://investor.synacor.com</u> and <u>https://materials.proxyvote.com/871561</u> on or about March 30, 2015.

Who can vote at the Annual Meeting?

Only stockholders of record at the close of business on March 23, 2015 will be entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting. On the record date, there were 27,429,665 shares of Company common stock (Common Stock) outstanding. All holders of these outstanding shares are entitled to one vote for each share of Common Stock held by them as of March 23, 2015 at the Annual Meeting.

Stockholder of Record: Shares Registered in Your Name

If on March 23, 2015 your shares were registered directly in your name with Synacor s transfer agent, American Stock Transfer & Trust Company, LLC, then you are a stockholder of record with respect to those shares. As a stockholder of record, you may vote in person at the meeting or vote by proxy. Whether or not you plan to attend the meeting, we urge you to complete, date, sign and return the enclosed <u>WHITE</u> proxy card or vote by proxy via telephone or the Internet as instructed on your proxy card to ensure your vote is counted.

Beneficial Owner: Shares Registered in the Name of a Broker or Bank

If on March 23, 2015 your shares were held in an account at a broker, bank or other similar organization, then you are the beneficial owner of shares held in street name, and these proxy materials are being forwarded to you by that organization. The organization holding your account is considered the stockholder of record for purposes of voting at the Annual Meeting. As a beneficial owner, you have the right to direct that organization on how to vote the shares in your account. Please refer to the voting instructions provided by your bank or broker. Many organizations enable beneficial owners to give voting instructions via telephone or the Internet as well as in writing. You are also invited to attend the Annual Meeting, but you will need to bring a copy of a brokerage statement reflecting stock ownership as of the record date. Since you are not the stockholder of record, you may not vote your shares in person at the meeting unless you provide a valid proxy (sometimes referred to as a legal proxy) from your broker, bank or other custodian.

What am I voting on?

There are three matters scheduled for a vote:

Proposal No. 1: Election of the three (3) members of the Board of Directors identified in Proposal No. 1 to serve as Class I directors until the Company s 2018 Annual Meeting of Stockholders or until their successors are duly elected and qualified.

Proposal No. 2: Ratification of the appointment of Deloitte & Touche LLP as the independent registered public accounting firm for the Company for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2015.

Proposal No. 3: Ratification of the Rights Agreement, dated as of July 14, 2014, between the Company and American Stock Transfer & Trust Company, LLC as rights agent (the Rights Agreement).
How do I vote?

For Proposal 1, you may either vote **FOR** all the nominees to the Board of Directors listed in this proxy statement or you may withhold your vote from any nominee you specify. For Proposals 2 and 3, you may vote **FOR** or **Against** the proposal or abstain from voting. The procedures for voting are fairly simple:

Stockholder of Record: Shares Registered in Your Name

If you are a stockholder of record, you may vote by proxy using the enclosed <u>WHITE</u> proxy card, vote by proxy on the Internet or by telephone, or vote in person at the Annual Meeting. Regardless of whether you plan to attend the meeting, we urge you to vote by proxy to ensure your vote is counted. You may still attend the meeting and vote in person if you have already voted by proxy.

To vote using the proxy card, simply complete, sign and date the enclosed <u>WHITE</u> proxy card and return it promptly in the envelope provided. If you return your signed proxy card to us before the Annual Meeting, we will vote your shares as you direct.

To vote on the Internet, please go to www.proxyvote.com to complete an electronic proxy card. You will be asked to provide the company number and control number from the enclosed <u>WHITE</u> proxy card. Your vote must be received by 11:59 p.m. Eastern Time on April 19, 2015 to be counted.

To vote by telephone, please call 1-800-690-6903 using a touch-tone phone and follow the recorded instructions. You will be asked to provide the company number and control number from the enclosed <u>WHITE</u> proxy card. Your vote must be received by 11:59 p.m. Eastern Time on April 19, 2015 to be counted.

To vote in person, come to the Annual Meeting and we will give you a ballot when you arrive. We provide Internet proxy voting to allow you to vote your shares online, with procedures designed to ensure the authenticity and correctness of your proxy vote instructions. However, please be aware that you must bear any costs associated with your Internet access, such as usage charges from Internet access providers.

Beneficial Owner: Shares Registered in the Name of a Broker or Bank

See *Who can vote at the Annual Meeting? Beneficial Owner: Shares Registered in the Name of a Broker or Bank* for voting instructions if you beneficially own shares held in street name.

How many votes do I have?

On each matter to be voted upon, you have one vote for each share of Common Stock you own as of the close of business on March 23, 2015.

What if I return a proxy card but do not make specific choices?

If you return a signed and dated proxy card without marking any voting selections, your shares will be voted **FOR** the election of each of the three nominees for director listed in this proxy statement, **FOR** ratification of Deloitte & Touche LLP as our independent registered public accounting firm and **FOR** ratification of the Rights Agreement. If any other matter is properly presented at the meeting, your proxy (one of the individuals named on your proxy card) will vote your shares using his or her best judgment.

Who are the participants in, and who is paying for, this proxy solicitation?

Synacor will pay for the entire cost of soliciting proxies in connection with this Proxy Statement. In addition to mailing these proxy materials, our agents, directors and executive officers may also solicit proxies in person, by telephone or by other means of communication. Appendix B sets forth information relating to such directors and executive officers who are considered participants in this proxy solicitation under the rules of the SEC by reason of their position or because they may be soliciting proxies on our behalf. Directors and executive officers will not be paid any additional compensation for soliciting proxies. We may reimburse brokerage firms, banks and other agents for the cost of forwarding proxy materials to beneficial owners. In addition, we have engaged The Proxy Advisory Group to assist with the solicitation of proxies and will pay the fees and expenses associated with its services. We anticipate that we will pay The Proxy Advisory Group a fee of approximately \$75,000 plus expenses for these services, though the costs of this proxy solicitation process could be lower or higher than our estimate. Our aggregate expenses, including those of The Proxy Advisory Group, related to the solicitation in excess of those normally spent for an annual meeting as a result of the potential proxy contest and excluding salaries and wages of our officers and regular employees, are expected to be approximately \$250,000, of which approximately \$140,000 has been spent to date. Synacor has agreed to indemnify The Proxy Advisory Group against certain liabilities relating to, or arising out of, their engagement, subject to certain limitations.

What does it mean if I receive more than one set of proxy materials?

If you receive more than one set of proxy materials (including multiple copies of this Proxy Statement and multiple <u>WHITE</u> proxy cards), your shares are registered in more than one name or are registered in different accounts. Please complete, date, sign and return each <u>WHITE</u> proxy card to ensure that all of your shares are voted.

Can I change my vote after submitting my proxy?

Yes. You can revoke your proxy at any time before the final vote at the meeting.

If you are a stockholder of record, you may revoke your proxy in any one of the following ways:

You may submit another properly completed proxy card with a later date.

You may vote again on a later date via the Internet or by telephone.

You may send a written notice that you are revoking your proxy to the Corporate Secretary of the Company at Synacor, Inc., 40 La Riviere Drive, Suite 300, Buffalo, New York 14202.

You may attend the Annual Meeting and vote in person. Simply attending the meeting will not, by itself, revoke your proxy. If you are a beneficial owner of shares held in street name, you may change your vote in any one of the following ways:

You may submit new voting instructions to your broker, trustee or nominee.

Edgar Filing: Synacor, Inc. - Form DEFC14A

If you have obtained a legal proxy from the broker, trustee or nominee that holds your shares giving you the right to vote the shares, by attending the Annual Meeting and voting in person.

How are votes counted?

Votes will be counted by the inspector of election appointed for the meeting. With respect to Proposal 1, the inspector of elections will count **For** votes. Abstentions and broker non-votes will not affect the outcome of Proposal 1.

With respect to Proposals 2 and 3, the inspector of elections will count separately **For**, **Against** and **Abstain** votes and broker non-votes. For purposes of Proposals 2 and 3, **Abstain** votes will be counted towards the vote total for such proposal, and will have the same effect as **Against** votes. However, broker non-votes are not deemed to be votes cast and, therefore, are not included in the tabulation of voting results on Proposals 2 and 3.

See How many votes are needed to approve each proposal? for further details regarding the votes needed to approve each proposal.

What is a broker non-vote ?

Broker non-votes occur when a beneficial owner of shares held in street name does not give instructions to the broker or nominee holding the shares as to how to vote on matters deemed non-routine. Generally, if shares are held in street name, the beneficial owner of the shares is entitled to give voting instructions to the broker or nominee holding the shares. If the beneficial owner does not provide voting instructions, the broker or nominee can still vote the shares with respect to matters that are considered to be routine, but not with respect to non-routine matters. Under the rules and interpretations of the New York Stock Exchange (NYSE), there are no routine proposals in a contested proxy solicitation. Even though our Common Stock is listed on the NASDAQ Global Select Market, the NYSE rules apply to brokers who are NYSE members voting on matters being submitted to shareholders at the Annual Meeting. Should a dissident stockholder group commence a contested proxy solicitation, there will be no routine matters at the Annual Meeting for any broker accounts that are provided with proxy materials by such dissident stockholder group. We strongly encourage you to submit your <u>WHITE</u> proxy card and exercise your right to vote as a stockholder.

How many votes are needed to approve each proposal?

Proposal No. 1. Directors are elected by a plurality of the affirmative votes cast by those shares present in person, or represented by proxy, and entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting. The nominees for director receiving the highest number of affirmative votes will be elected. Stockholders may not cumulate votes in the election of directors. Abstentions and broker non-votes will not be counted toward a nominee s total.

Proposal No. 2. Ratification of the appointment of Deloitte & Touche LLP as the Company s independent registered public accounting firm for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2015 requires the affirmative vote of a majority of those shares present in person, or represented by proxy, and cast either affirmatively or negatively at the Annual Meeting. Abstentions will have the same effect as an Against vote. Broker non-votes will not be counted as having been voted on the proposal.

Proposal No. 3. Ratification of the Rights Agreement requires the affirmative vote of a majority of those shares present in person, or represented by proxy, and cast either affirmatively or negatively at the Annual Meeting. Abstentions will have the same effect as an Against vote. Broker non-votes will not be counted as having been voted on the proposal.

What are the Board s voting recommendations?

Proposal No. 1: FOR each of the nominees to the Board of Directors named in this proxy statement.

Proposal No. 2: FOR ratification of the appointment of Deloitte & Touche LLP as the independent registered public accounting firm for the Company for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2015.

Proposal No. 3: FOR ratification of the Rights Agreement, dated as of July 14, 2014, between the Company and American Stock Transfer & Trust Company, LLC as rights agent.

What is the quorum requirement?

A quorum of stockholders is necessary to hold a valid meeting. A quorum will be present if a majority of all outstanding shares is represented by stockholders present at the meeting or by proxy. On the record date, there were 27,429,665 shares of Common Stock outstanding and entitled to vote. Thus, 13,714,833 shares must be represented by stockholders present at the meeting or by proxy to have a quorum. Your shares will be counted towards the quorum if you submit a valid proxy vote or vote at the meeting. Under the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware, abstentions and broker non-votes will be counted as present for the purpose of determining the presence of a quorum.

How can I find out the results of the voting at the Annual Meeting?

Preliminary voting results will be announced at the Annual Meeting. Final voting results will be published in a Current Report on Form 8-K within four business days following the Annual Meeting. In the event we are unable to obtain the final voting results within four business days, we will file the preliminary voting results in a Current Report on Form 8-K within four business days following the Annual Meeting, and will file an amended Form 8-K with the final voting results within four business days after the final voting results are known.

How can stockholders submit a proposal for inclusion in our Proxy Statement for the 2016 Annual Meeting of Stockholders?

To be included in our Proxy Statement for the 2016 annual meeting of stockholders, stockholder proposals must comply with the requirements of Rule 14a-8 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the Exchange Act). Except as provided below, stockholder proposals must be received by our Corporate Secretary at our principal executive offices no later than December 1, 2015, or one hundred twenty (120) calendar days before the one-year anniversary of the date on which we first commenced mailing our proxy materials to stockholders in connection with this year s Annual Meeting.

How can stockholders submit proposals to be raised at the 2016 Annual Meeting of Stockholders that will not be included in our Proxy Statement for the 2016 Annual Meeting of Stockholders?

To be raised at the 2016 annual meeting of stockholders, stockholder proposals must comply with our amended and restated bylaws (the Bylaws). Under our Bylaws, a stockholder must give advance notice to our Corporate Secretary of any business, including nominations of directors for our Board, that the stockholder wishes to raise at the 2016 annual meeting of stockholders. Except as provided below, a stockholder s notice shall be delivered to our Corporate Secretary at our principal executive offices not less than forty-five (45) or more than seventy-five (75) days prior to the first anniversary of the date on which we first mailed our proxy materials for the preceding year s annual meeting of stockholders. Since we commenced mailing to all stockholders of record entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting on March 30, 2015, stockholder proposals must be received by our Corporate Secretary at our principal executive offices no earlier than January 15, 2016 and no later than February 14, 2016, in order to be raised at our 2016 annual meeting of stockholders. If a stockholder wishes only to recommend a candidate for consideration by the Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee as a potential nominee for director, see the procedures discussed in *Corporate Governance Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee*.

What if the date of the 2016 Annual Meeting of Stockholders changes by more than 30 days from the anniversary of this year s Annual Meeting?

Under Rule 14a-8 of the Exchange Act, if the date of the 2016 annual meeting of stockholders changes by more than 30 days from the anniversary of this year s Annual Meeting, to be included in our Proxy Statement, stockholder proposals must be received by us within a reasonable time before our solicitation is made. Under our

Bylaws, for stockholder proposals that will not be included in our Proxy Statement, notice of such proposal must be received no later than the close of business on the later of (i) the 90th day prior to the 2016 annual meeting of stockholders or (ii) the 10th day following the day on which public announcement of the meeting is first made.

Does a stockholder proposal require specific information?

With respect to a stockholder s nomination of a candidate for our Board, the stockholder notice to our Corporate Secretary must contain certain information as set forth in our Bylaws about both the nominee and the stockholder making the nomination. With respect to any other business that the stockholder proposes, the stockholder notice must contain a brief description of such business and the reasons for conducting such business at the meeting, as well as certain other information as set forth in our Bylaws. If you wish to bring a stockholder proposal or nominate a candidate for director, you are advised to review our Bylaws, which contain additional requirements about advance notice of stockholder proposals and director nominations. Our current Bylaws may be found on our website at http://www.synacor.com in the Investor Relations section.

* * * * *

If you have any questions or require any assistance with voting your shares, please contact The Proxy Advisory Group, our proxy solicitor:

The Proxy Advisory Group, LLC

888-55-PROXY

(888-557-7699)

PROPOSAL 1

ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The Company s amended and restated certificate of incorporation (the Charter) and Bylaws provide for a classified board of directors. There are three classes of directors, with each class of directors serving three-year terms that end in successive years. Synacor currently has authorized seven directors. The class of directors standing for election at the Annual Meeting currently consists of three directors. Three directors will be elected at the Annual Meeting to serve until the 2018 annual meeting of stockholders of Synacor or until their successors are duly elected and qualified. The directors being nominated for election to the Board of Directors (each, a Nominee), their ages as of March 1, 2015, their positions and offices held with Synacor and certain biographical information are set forth below.

The Board recommends that you vote on the <u>WHITE</u> proxy card or voting instruction form FOR the election of each of Messrs. Bhise, Kau and Levy to serve as directors of Synacor until the 2018 annual meeting of stockholders, or until their successors are elected and qualified.

The proxy holders intend to vote all proxies received by them in the accompanying form **FOR** the Nominees listed below unless otherwise instructed. In the event that any Nominee is unable or declines to serve as a director at the time of the Annual Meeting, the proxies will be voted for any nominee who may be designated by the current Board of Directors to fill the vacancy. As of the date of this Proxy Statement, each Nominee has consented to being named in this Proxy Statement and to serving as a director if elected. The three Nominees receiving the highest number of affirmative votes of the shares entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting will be elected directors of Synacor. Abstentions and broker non-votes will not be counted toward an individual s total. Proxies cannot be voted for more than three individuals. For further information about how votes will be counted, please refer above to the section entitled *How many votes are needed to approve each proposal*. There are no family relationships among any of our directors or executive officers.

Information Regarding the Nominees

Name	Age	Positions and Offices Held with the Company
Himesh Bhise	47	Director, President and Chief Executive Officer
Andrew Kau	53	Director
Jordan Levy	59	Director and Chairman of the Board

Himesh Bhise has been a member of our Board of Directors and our President and Chief Executive Officer since August 2014. From June 2012 until he joined Synacor, Mr. Bhise served as the Vice President of New Services & Platforms of the Comcast Cable unit of Comcast Corporation where he was responsible for incubating, launching and operating video, Internet and advertising growth businesses. From July 2010 to June 2012, Mr. Bhise was Managing Director at Activate, Inc., a strategy and technology consulting firm where he specialized in product development, marketing and partnering strategies to jumpstart growth. From June 2009 to June 2010, Mr. Bhise led products and growth strategy at Gerson Lehrman Group, Inc. From September 2005 to January 2009, Mr. Bhise was Vice President and general manager of the High Speed Internet business at Charter Communications, Inc., responsible for broadband, portal and multi-platform services. Before that, Mr. Bhise served as Vice President and General Manager of AOL Inc. s mobile division from June 2003 to August 2005, and from 1996 to 2003 worked at McKinsey & Company in its telecom, mergers and acquisitions and marketing practices. Mr. Bhise received his M.B.A. from the Wharton School of the University of Pennsylvania. We believe it is appropriate and desirable for our Chief Executive Officer to serve on our Board, as it provides our Board with useful insights with respect to management and operations. Additionally, Mr. Bhise brings to our Board extensive experience as an operating executive in the broadband, multiscreen and mobile industries.

Andrew Kau has been a member of our Board of Directors since December 2000. Prior to that period, Mr. Kau served as a director of MyPersonal.com, Inc., one of our predecessor companies, from September 1999 until its acquisition by Chek, Inc. to form Synacor. Mr. Kau has been a managing director at Walden International since 1994. From 1992 to 1994, Mr. Kau was President of Chemical Technologies Ventures. Mr. Kau was a management consultant at Strategic Planning Associates, LLC from 1991 to 1992 and at Booz, Allen and Hamilton Inc. from 1985 to 1987. From 1983 to 1985, Mr. Kau was a research scientist at Systems Planning Corporation. Mr. Kau holds a Sc.B. in Electrical Engineering from Brown University and an M.B.A. from the University of Virginia. We believe Mr. Kau s lengthy experience as a venture capital investor enables him to bring significant technology knowledge to our Board, as well as relationships with key industry contacts and potential strategic partners. Additionally, Mr. Kau s lengthy history on our Board enables him to provide essential leadership to the Board on corporate governance and operational matters.

Jordan Levy has been a member of our Board of Directors since October 2001 and has served as Chairman of the Board since October 2007. Mr. Levy has been a general partner at Softbank Capital since June 2005. In October 1999, Mr. Levy co-founded Seed Capital Partners LLC and was a managing partner there until May 2005. From July 2007 to March 2012, Mr. Levy served as Chairman of the Erie Canal Harbor Development Corporation. From 2004 through 2009, Mr. Levy served on the board of directors of Lorex Technology Inc., a publicly-held company. In April 2013, Mr. Levy joined the Federal Reserve Bank of New York s Upstate New York Regional Advisory Board. Mr. Levy holds a B.A. in Political Science from the State University of New York at Buffalo. We believe Mr. Levy service on the boards of directors of our Board and enables him to provide essential strategic and corporate governance leadership to the Board. Additionally, Mr. Levy s experience as a venture capital investor, including at the seed stage, enables him to bring to our Board significant technology experience and insights in evaluating new businesses and products.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS RECOMMENDS A VOTE FOR EACH NAMED NOMINEE.

Information Regarding Other Directors Continuing in Office

Set forth below is information regarding each of the continuing directors of Synacor, including his age as of March 1, 2015, the period during which he has served as a director, and certain information as to principal occupations and directorships held by him in corporations whose shares are publicly registered.

Class II Directors Term Ending in 2016

Marwan Fawaz, age 52, has been a member of our Board of Directors since December 2011. Since June 2011, Mr. Fawaz has served as Principal at Fawaz Consulting Services. In addition, from June 2012 to May 2013, Mr. Fawaz served as an Executive Vice President at Motorola Mobility LLC with responsibility for the Motorola Home Division. From August 2006 through March 2011, Mr. Fawaz was an Executive Vice President and Chief Technology Officer at Charter Communications, Inc. (Charter Communications), where he served as an executive officer during the pendency of its Chapter 11 cases in 2009. From March 2003 until July 2006, Mr. Fawaz served as Senior Vice President and Chief Technology to March 2003. From March 2003 until July 2006, Mr. Fawaz served as Senior Vice President and Chief Technology to March 2003, he served as Investment Specialist/Technology Analyst for Vulcan, Inc. Mr. Fawaz served as Regional Vice President of Operations for the Northwest Region for Charter Communications from July 2001 to March 2002. From July 2000 to December 2000, he served as Chief Technology Officer for Infinity Broadband. He served as Vice President Engineering and Operations at MediaOne, Inc. from January 1996 to June 2000. Mr. Fawaz received a B.S. degree in electrical engineering and a M.S. in telecom engineering from California State University Long Beach. We believe Mr. Fawaz significant experience as an executive at broadband service providers enables him to bring a valuable customer perspective to our Board and provides our Board with insight into how prospective and existing customers value our product offering.

Michael J. Montgomery, age 60, has been a member of our Board of Directors since December 2011. Mr. Montgomery served as president of Montgomery & Co., a media and technology investment bank, through June of 2013, where he also led the media practice. Prior to joining the predecessor company to Montgomery & Co. in 1999, Mr. Montgomery was the chief executive officer at Sega GameWorks, a joint venture between Sega, Universal Studios and DreamWorks Studios. Before that, Mr. Montgomery was a senior executive at DreamWorks Studios from 1995 until 1999. Before joining DreamWorks Studios, Mr. Montgomery spent approximately eight years with The Walt Disney Company and its affiliates, where he held a number of senior positions including managing director and chief financial officer of EuroDisney and treasurer of The Walt Disney Company. He has previously served on the boards of directors of Corus Pharma and Pathogenesis, a public pharmaceutical company that was acquired by Chiron Corporation in 2000. Mr. Montgomery received his M.B.A. from the Amos Tuck School at Dartmouth College, where he also received a B.A. degree as Rufus Choate Scholar with magna cum laude honors. Mr. Montgomery is currently a board member of and Chair of the Audit Committee for DreamWorks Animation SKG, Inc. We believe that Mr. Montgomery is experience overseeing a media and technology investment banking business gives him a unique and valuable insight regarding the Internet and other emerging media businesses. Additionally, we believe Mr. Montgomery is prior operational experience is valuable to our Board and his experience serving as the Chair of DreamWorks Animation is prior operational experience is valuable to our Board and his experience serving as the Chair of DreamWorks Animation is Audit Committee is, likewise, valuable to our Audit Committee.

Class III Directors Term Ending in 2017

Gary L. Ginsberg, age 52, has been a member of our Board of Directors since December 2011. Mr. Ginsberg has been the Executive Vice President of Corporate Marketing and Communications at Time Warner Inc. since February 2010. From 1999 through late 2009, Mr. Ginsberg served as the Executive Vice President in various capacities at News Corporation. Mr. Ginsberg has also been a managing director at the strategic consulting firm Clark & Weinstock, a senior editor and counsel at George, the magazine, a former Assistant Counsel to President Clinton, and an attorney with Simpson Thacher & Bartlett LLP. Mr. Ginsberg holds an A.B. from Brown University and a J.D. from Columbia University School of Law. Mr. Ginsberg is a member of the boards of directors of the John F. Kennedy Library Foundation, the Newseum, New Visions for Public Schools and New York Cares. He is also a member of the Council on Foreign Relations. In the past five years, Mr. Ginsberg has served on the boards of directors of Vringo, Inc. and Audible, Inc. and on the audit committee of Audible, Inc. We believe Mr. Ginsberg s significant and high-level experience in the media industry enables him to bring valuable operational and management experience to our Board and provides our Board with a unique insight into potential partnerships with companies in the media industry.

Scott Murphy, age 45, rejoined our Board of Directors in October 2014 after having previously served on our Board of Directors from October 2004 until April 2009, when he won a special election to serve as U.S. Representative of New York s 20th congressional district. After completing his congressional service in 2011, Mr. Murphy rejoined Advantage Capital Partners in 2012 as a managing director and chief investment officer. Mr. Murphy previously worked at Advantage Capital from 2001 to 2009, overseeing the firm s New York portfolio. Prior to his first tenure at Advantage Capital, Mr. Murphy co-founded three high-tech companies, including a game company that brought fantasy football and baseball to the Internet. Mr. Murphy also founded an online auction company that was sold to eBay, Inc. and a website-building company that was sold to iXL Enterprises Inc. Mr. Murphy received his A.B. magna cum laude from Harvard University. We believe Mr. Murphy s experience in investing, in entrepreneurship and in public service, along with his expertise in shareholder rights and corporate governance, enables him to bring unique insight, operational experience and financial experience to our Board.

Information Regarding Opposing Slate of Directors

Stichting Bewaarder Ratio Capital Partners and JEC II Associates, LLC (together with their affiliates and related parties, the JEC/Ratio Group) have notified the Company of their intent to nominate three individuals for election as directors at the Annual Meeting in opposition to the nominees recommended by our Board of

Directors. Our Board does not endorse any JEC/Ratio Group nominees. If the JEC/Ratio Group proceeds with its alternative director nominations, you may receive proxy solicitation materials from or on behalf of the JEC/Ratio Group, including an opposition proxy statement and a blue proxy card. Synacor is not responsible for the accuracy of any information contained in any proxy solicitation